

EUROPEAN TELECOMMUNICATION STANDARD

ETS 300 514

September 1994

Source: ETSI TC-SMG Reference: DE/SMG-010281P

ICS: 33.060.30

Key words: European digital cellular telecommunications system, Global System for Mobile communications

(GSM)

European digital cellular telecommunications system (Phase 2); Line identification supplementary services - Stage 1 (GSM 02.81)

ETSI

European Telecommunications Standards Institute

ETSI Secretariat

Postal address: F-06921 Sophia Antipolis CEDEX - FRANCE

Office address: 650 Route des Lucioles - Sophia Antipolis - Valbonne - FRANCE

X.400: c=fr, a=atlas, p=etsi, s=secretariat - Internet: secretariat@etsi.fr

Tel.: +33 92 94 42 00 - Fax: +33 93 65 47 16

New presentation - see History box

Copyright Notification: No part may be reproduced except as authorized by written permission. The copyright and the foregoing restriction extend to reproduction in all media.



Whilst every care has been taken in the preparation and publication of this document, errors in content, typographical or otherwise, may occur. If you have comments concerning its accuracy, please write to "ETSI Editing and Committee Support Dept." at the address shown on the title page.

Contents

Fore	wora			5					
_				_					
0			pplementary services						
	0.1	Scope		7					
	0.2		references						
	0.3	Definitions and abbreviations							
1									
	Calling I	ling Line Identification Presentation (CLIP)							
	1.2		1						
		1.2.1	Description						
		1.2.2	Applicability to telecommunication services						
	1.3	Normal procedures with successful outcome							
		1.3.1	Provision						
		1.3.2	Withdrawal						
		1.3.5	Activation						
		1.3.6	Deactivation						
		1.3.7	Invocation						
		1.3.8	Normal operation with successful outcome						
		1.3.11	Interrogation						
	1.4		al procedures or unsuccessful outcome						
	1.5		procedures						
	1.6	Interaction	s with other supplementary services	10					
		1.6.81.2	Calling line identification restriction	10					
		1.6.82.1	Call forwarding unconditional	10					
		1.6.82.2	Call forwarding on mobile subscriber busy	10					
		1.6.82.3	Call forwarding on no reply	10					
		1.6.82.4	Call forwarding on mobile subscriber not reachable	11					
		1.6.83.1	Call Waiting						
	1.7	Interworkir	ng considerations						
2		Calling Line Identification Restriction (CLIR)1							
	2.1								
	2.2		າ						
		2.2.1	Description						
		2.2.2	Applicability to telecommunications services						
	2.3	Normal pro	ocedures with successful outcome						
		2.3.1	Provision	12					
		2.3.2	Withdrawal	12					
		2.3.5	Activation	12					
		2.3.6	Deactivation	12					
		2.3.7	Invocation	12					
		2.3.8	Normal operation with successful outcome	13					
		2.3.11	Interrogation						
	2.4	Exceptiona	al procedures or unsuccessful outcome						
	2.5		Procedures						
	2.6		s with other supplementary services						
		2.6.81.1	Calling line identification presentation						
		2.6.82.1	Call forwarding unconditional						
		2.6.82.2	Call forwarding on mobile subscriber busy						
		2.6.82.3	Call forwarding on no reply						
		2.6.82.4	Call forwarding on mobile subscriber not reachable						
	2.7		ng considerations						
	۷.۱	II ILGI WUIKII	าง ออกอเนอเสแบกจ	14					
3	Connec	Connected Line Identification Presentation (COLP)15							
	3.1	Definition							
	3.2		٦						
	J	2 200 i pilol							

Page 4

ETS 300 514: September 1994 (GSM 02.81 version 4.4.2)

		3.2.1	Description				
		3.2.2	Applicability to telecommunication services				
	3.3		edure with succesful outcome				
		3.3.1	Provision				
		3.3.2	Withdrawal				
		3.3.5	Activation				
		3.3.6	Deactivation				
		3.3.7	Invocation				
		3.3.8	Normal operation with successful outcome				
		3.3.11	Interrogation				
	3.4		procedures or unsuccessful outcome				
	3.5		ocedures				
	3.6		with other supplementary services				
		3.6.81.4	Connected line identification restriction				
		3.6.82.1	Call forwarding unconditional				
		3.6.82.2	Call forwarding on mobile subscriber busy				
		3.6.82.3	Call forwarding on no reply	16			
		3.6.82.4	Call forwarding on mobile subscriber not reachable				
		3.6.84.1	Multiparty				
	3.7	Interworking	considerations	17			
4	Connected Line Identification Restriction (COLR)						
4	4.1		incation Restriction (COLR)				
	4.1						
	4.2	4.2.1	Description				
		4.2.1	Applicability to telecommunications services				
	4.3		redures with successful outcome				
	4.3	4.3.1	Provision				
		4.3.1	Withdrawal				
		4.3.5 4.3.6	Activation Deactivation				
		4.3.7 4.3.8	Invocation				
			Normal operation with successful outcome				
	4.4	4.3.11	Interrogation				
	4.4		procedures or unsuccessful outcome				
	4.5		ocedures				
	4.6		with other supplementary services				
		4.6.81.3	Connected line identification presentation				
		4.6.82.1	Call forwarding unconditional				
		4.6.82.2	Call forwarding on mobile subscriber busy				
		4.6.82.3	Call forwarding on no reply				
	4 =	4.6.82.4	Call forwarding on mobile subscriber not reachable				
	4.7	Interworking	consideration	19			
l l'atau				~			

Foreword

This ETS describes line identification supplementary services (stage 1) within the European digital cellular telecommunications system (Phase 2).

This ETS corresponds to GSM technical specification GSM 02.81 version 4.4.2.

The specification from which this ETS has been derived was originally based on CEPT documentation, hence the presentation of this ETS may not be entirely in accordance with the ETSI/PNE rules.

Reference is made within this ETS to GSM-TSs (NOTE).

NOTE:

TC-SMG has produced documents which give the technical specifications for the implementation of the European digital cellular telecommunications system. Historically, these documents have been identified as GSM Technical Specifications (GSM-TSs). These TSs may have subsequently become I-ETSs (Phase 1), or ETSs (Phase 2), whilst others may become ETSI Technical Reports (ETRs). GSM-TSs are, for editorial reasons, still referred to in GSM ETSs.

Page 6

ETS 300 514: September 1994 (GSM 02.81 version 4.4.2)

Blank page

0 Line identification supplementary services

0.1 Scope

This specification describes the supplementary services belonging to the group LINE IDENTIFICATION SUPPLEMENTARY SERVICES.

The general aspects, including definitions and recommended provision, of the description of the GSM supplementary services are given in specification GSM 02.04.

The group of LINE IDENTIFICATION SUPPLEMENTARY SERVICES is divided into the following four supplementary services:

CLIP - Calling line identification presentation (section 1);
CLIR - Calling line identification restriction (section 2);
COLP - Connected line identification presentation (section 3);

COLP - Connected line identification presentation (section 3);
COLR - Connected line identification restriction (section 4).

Definition of line identity:

The line identity is made up of a number of information units:

- the subscriber's national ISDN/MSISDN number (MSISDN number is the number stored in the VLR);
- the country code;
- optionally, subaddress information. The GSM PLMN cannot be responsible for the content of this subaddress. (For definition of the subaddress see CCITT Recommendation E.164 [3] subsection 11.2).

In a full ISDN environment, the line identity shall include all the address information necessary to unambiguously identify a subscriber.

The calling line identity is the line identity of the calling party.

The connected line identity is the line identity of the connected party.

Definition of Presentation and Screening Indicators:

In addition to or instead of the line identity the network may give a Presentation Indicator (PI) and/or a Screening Indicator (SI) to the served subscriber. The following information may be given:

- Presentation Indicator showing:
 - a) presentation allowed, or
 - b) presentation restricted, or
 - c) number not available due to interworking;
- Screening Indicator showing:
 - a) user provided, verified and passed, or
 - b) user provided, not screened, or
 - c) network provided.

If the line identity is that of a GSM PLMN subscriber then:

the national number and the country code shall always be provided by the network;

the subaddress shall only be included if it is provided by the user (or user equipment);

the screening indicator shall indicate "network provided".

0.2 Normative references

This ETS incorporates by dated and undated reference, provisions from other publications. These normative references are cited at the appropriate places in the text and the publications are listed hereafter. For dated references, subsequent amendments to or revisions of any of these publications apply to this ETS only when incorporated in it by amendment or revision. For undated references, the latest edition of the publication referred to applies.

[1] GSM 01.04 (ETR 100): "European digital cellular telecommunication system (Phase 2); Definitions, abbreviations and acronyms".

[2] GSM 02.04 (ETS 300 503): "European digital cellular telecommunication system (Phase 2); General on supplementary services".

[3] CCITT Recommendation E.164: "Numbering plan for the ISDN era".

0.3 Definitions and abbreviations

Abbreviations used in this specification are listed in GSM 01.04.

1 Calling Line Identification Presentation (CLIP)

1.1 Definition

The CLIP supplementary service provides the called party with the possibility to receive the line identity of the calling party.

1.2 Description

1.2.1 Description

This supplementary service provides for the ability to indicate the line identity of the calling party to the called party.

The network shall deliver the calling line identity to the called party at call set-up time, regardless of the terminal capability to handle the information.

1.2.2 Applicability to telecommunication services

The CLIP supplementary service is applicable to all telecommunication services, except for the Short Message Service.

1.3 Normal procedures with successful outcome

1.3.1 Provision

This Supplementary Service is provisioned for all Basic Services subscribed to and to which it is applicable, i.e. not provisioned for any subset of these Basic Services.

Override category within a PLMN

Override category within an ISDN/PLMN. Depending on national regulations, some networks may define categories of subscribers that have the ability to override the presentation restriction (CLIR, ch 2) and have the calling line identity presented (e.g., the police). The ability to have such override category is a national option.

Override category between a PLMN and a network providing calling line identification restriction

Override category between ISDN/PLMNs. When a call originates in one ISDN/PLMN and terminates in another ISDN/PLMN and the CLIR supplementary service is applied, the rules and regulations of the destination network shall apply. For example, the override category may not be applicable in the originating network but may be applicable in the destination network. In this situation a call with the CLIR supplementary service applied can still be overridden in the destination network.

The override category is only applicable within the HPLMN country.

1.3.2 Withdrawal

The CLIP supplementary service shall be withdrawn at the customer's request or for administrative reasons.

1.3.5 Activation

The CLIP supplementary service is activated as a result of provision.

1.3.6 Deactivation

The CLIP supplementary service is deactivated as a result of withdrawal.

1.3.7 Invocation

The network shall automatically invoke the CLIP supplementary service in the call set-up phase.

1.3.8 Normal operation with successful outcome

A user who has subscribed to the CLIP supplementary service and receives a call shall also receive the line identity of the calling party.

In addition to or instead of the calling line identity the subscriber may be given a Presentation Indicator and/or a Screening Indicator with the relevant information.

1.3.11 Interrogation

Status check

The mobile subscriber can request the status of the supplementary service and be informed if the service is provided to her.

1.4 Exceptional procedures or unsuccessful outcome

If the CLIR supplementary service is applicable to the call, then the called PLMN user shall receive an indication that the calling line identity is not available because of restriction.

NOTE: See also section 1.3.1 (override category).

In some interworking situations in which the connection is not completely supported by the sufficient signalling capability, then the called PLMN user shall receive an indication that the calling line identity is not available.

For an international call in which the originating network does not provide the calling line identity, then the called PLMN user shall receive an indication that the calling line identity is not available.

1.5 Alternate procedures

None identified.

1.6 Interactions with other supplementary services

1.6.81.2 Calling line identification restriction

The CLIR supplementary service shall take precedence over the CLIP supplementary service.

The CLIP supplementary service can take precedence over the CLIR supplementary service when the called user has an override category. This is a national matter.

1.6.82.1 Call forwarding unconditional

When a call has been forwarded and the forwarded-to user has been provided with the CLIP supplementary service, the forwarded-to user shall receive the number of the original calling user, if this calling user has not subscribed to or invoked the CLIR supplementary service.

1.6.82.2 Call forwarding on mobile subscriber busy

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional

1.6.82.3 Call forwarding on no reply

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional

1.6.82.4 Call forwarding on mobile subscriber not reachable

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional.

1.6.83.1 Call Waiting

If the served mobile subscriber is provisioned with the CLIP service, the notification of an incoming (waiting) call offered to that subscriber shall include the calling line identity, as for a normal call.

1.7 Interworking considerations

According to national network specific rules, the CLIP supplementary services need not be applicable, if at least one of the two parties is not an ISDN or GSM PLMN subscriber.

2 Calling Line Identification Restriction (CLIR)

2.1 Definition

The CLIR supplementary service enables the calling party to prevent presentation of its line identity to the called party.

2.2 Description

2.2.1 Description

The CLIR supplementary service is a supplementary service offered to the calling party to prevent presentation of the calling party's line identity, to the called party. In the case where the called party has an override category, see clause 2.4.

2.2.2 Applicability to telecommunications services

The CLIR supplementary service is applicable to all telecommunication services, except Short Message Service and emergency calls.

2.3 Normal procedures with successful outcome

2.3.1 Provision

This supplementary service is provisioned for all Basic Services subscribed to and to which it is applicable, i.e. not provisioned for any subset of these Basic Services.

As a service provider option, the CLIR supplementary service can be offered with one subscription option permanent (invoked for all revelant calls) or temporary (supressed by the user on a per call basis).

In temporary mode, the subscriber may subscribe to the default values:

- presentation restricted: or,
- presentation not restricted.

The option applies to all BS which are provisioned for this SS.

2.3.2 Withdrawal

This supplementary service will be withdrawn at the subscriber's request or for administrative reasons.

2.3.5 Activation

The CLIR supplementary service shall be activated on provision.

2.3.6 Deactivation

The CLIR supplementary service shall be deactivated on withdrawal.

2.3.7 Invocation

If subscribed to in the permanent mode, then the network shall automatically invoke the CLIR supplementary service for each outgoing call.

If subscribed-to in the temporary mode with the default value "presentation restricted", then the network shall automatically invoke the CLIR supplementary service for each outgoing call unless CLIR is suppressed by subscriber request at the time of call request.

If subscribed-to in the temporary mode with the default value "presentation not restricted", then the network shall only invoke the CLIR supplementary service if requested by subscriber at the time of call request.

2.3.8 Normal operation with successful outcome

When the CLIR supplementary service is invoked, the originating network shall provide the destination network with a notification that the line identity of the calling party is not allowed to be presented to the called party.

If the called party subscribes to the CLIP supplementary service and the CLIR supplementary service has been invoked then the called party shall receive an indication that the calling line identity is not available due to restriction.

2.3.11 Interrogation

Status check

The mobile subscriber can request the status of the supplementary service and be informed if the service is provided to her.

2.4 Exceptional procedures or unsuccessful outcome

If the subscriber has subscribed to the permanent mode and she tries to suppress the invocation of the CLIR supplementary service per MMI command during call set-up (i.e. requests that the CLI is displayed), she shall be notified that the suppression has not been performed and the call set-up shall continue. If the user has not subscribed to CLIR supplementary service and she tries to invoke it during call set-up per MMI command (i.e. requests that the CLI is not displayed), the call set-up attempt shall be rejected.

If the called party has a relevant override category (see section 1.3.1) the restriction service will be overridden and the calling line identity will be presented to the called party.

2.5 Alternate Procedures

A VPLMN which supports the CLIR service shall ensure that the line identity of a subscriber whose HPLMN does not support the CLIR service shall not be displayed to the called party unless the party has CLIR override capability.

2.6 Interactions with other supplementary services

2.6.81.1 Calling line identification presentation

See section 1.6.81.2.

2.6.82.1 Call forwarding unconditional

No interaction, i.e. when the CLIR supplementary service is applicable and invoked for the original calling subscriber, her line identity shall not be presented to the forwarded-to user unless the forwarded-to user has an override category.

2.6.82.2 Call forwarding on mobile subscriber busy

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional.

2.6.82.3 Call forwarding on no reply

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional.

2.6.82.4 Call forwarding on mobile subscriber not reachable

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional.

Page 14

ETS 300 514: September 1994 (GSM 02.81 version 4.4.2)

2.7 Interworking considerations

On calls to or via non-ISDNs, it cannot be assured that a calling line identification restriction indication can be carried to the destination network. As a national option the originating network can restrict any information identifying the calling party from being forwarded to the destination network when the CLIR supplementary service is applicable. If a destination network receives a calling line identity without any indication of presentation allowed or restricted, the destination network shall act according to its rules and regulations.

For internetwork calls, when the CLIR supplementary service is invoked, the originating network shall provide the destination network with a notification that the line identity of the calling party is not allowed to be presented to the called party.

NOTE: When the supplementary service CLIR is invoked, some network providers may not send the identity of the calling subscriber to other network.

3 Connected Line Identification Presentation (COLP)

3.1 Definition

The Connected Line Identification Presentation (COLP) supplementary service provides the calling party with the possibility to receive the line identity of the connected party.

3.2 Description

3.2.1 Description

This supplementary service is not a dialling check but an indication to the calling subscriber of the connected line identity in a full ISDN/GSM environment, the connected line identity shall include all the information necessary to unambiguously identify the connected party.

The network shall deliver the connected line identity to the calling party regardless of the terminal capability to handle the information.

3.2.2 Applicability to telecommunication services

The COLP supplementary service is applicable to all telecommunication services, except for the Short Message Service

3.3 Normal procedure with succesful outcome

3.3.1 Provision

This Supplementary Service is provisioned for all Basic Services subscribed to and to which it is applicable, i.e. not provisioned for any subset of these Basic Services.

Override category within a PLMN

Override category within an ISDN/PLMN. Depending on national regulations, some networks may define categories of subscribers that have the ability to override the presentation restriction (COLR, ch4) and have the connected line identity presented (e.g., the police). The ability to have such an override category is a national option.

Override category between a PLMN and a network providing connected line identification restriction.

Override category between ISDNs/PLMNs. When a call originates in one ISDN/PLMN and terminates in another ISDN/PLMN and the COLR supplementary service is applied, the rules and regulations of the originating network shall apply.

The override category is only applicable within the HPLMN country.

3.3.2 Withdrawal

The COLP supplementary service shall be withdrawn at the customer's request or for administrative reasons.

3.3.5 Activation

The COLP supplementary service is activated as a result of provision.

3.3.6 Deactivation

The COLP supplementary service is deactivated as a result of withdrawal.

3.3.7 Invocation

The network shall automatically invoke the COLP supplementary service on each outgoing call made by the served user.

3.3.8 Normal operation with successful outcome

The calling subscriber shall at the end of the call set-up phase receive the connected line identity.

In addition to or instead of the connected line identity the subscriber may be given a Presentation Indicator and/or a Screening Indicator with the relevant information.

3.3.11 Interrogation

Status check

The mobile subscriber can request the status of the supplementary service and be informed if the service is provided to her.

3.4 Exceptional procedures or unsuccessful outcome

If the COLR supplementary service is applicable to the call the served user shall receive an indication that the connected line identity is not available due to restriction.

NOTE: See also section 3.3.1 (override category).

In some interworking situations in which the connection is not completely supported by sufficient signalling capability the served user shall receive an indication that the connected line identity is not available.

For an international call in which the destination network does not provide the connected line identity, then the served user shall receive an indication that the connected line identity is not available.

3.5 Alternate procedures

None identified.

3.6 Interactions with other supplementary services

3.6.81.4 Connected line identification restriction

The COLR supplementary service shall take precedence over the COLP supplementary service. The COLP supplementary service can take precedence over the COLR supplementary service when the served user has an override category. This a national option.

3.6.82.1 Call forwarding unconditional

If the served (forwarding) user selects the option that the calling user is not notified of call forwarding, then the calling user shall receive no forwarding notification, and the calling user shall not receive the connected line identity when the call is answered, unless the calling user has override capability. Otherwise, no interaction.

3.6.82.2 Call forwarding on mobile subscriber busy

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional.

3.6.82.3 Call forwarding on no reply

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional.

3.6.82.4 Call forwarding on mobile subscriber not reachable

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional.

3.6.84.1 Multiparty

Multiparty controller: no impact, i.e. neither supplementary service shall affect the operation or the other supplementary service.

Remote parties: they shall not receive the COLP supplementary service information of parties being added to the conference.

3.7 Interworking considerations

According to national network specific rules the COLP supplementary service need not be applicable, if at least one of the two parties is not an ISDN or GSM PLMN subscriber.

4 Connected Line Identification Restriction (COLR)

4.1 Definition

The COLR supplementary service enables the connected party to prevent presentation of its line identity to the calling party.

4.2 Description

4.2.1 Description

The COLR supplementary service is a supplementary service offered to the connected party to prevent presentation of the connected line identity, to the calling party. In the case where the calling party has an override category, see clause 4.4.

4.2.2 Applicability to telecommunications services

The COLR supplementary service is applicable to all telecommunication services except for the Short Message Service.

4.3 Normal procedures with successful outcome

4.3.1 Provision

This SS is provisioned for all Basic Services subscribed to and to which it is applicable, i.e. not provisioned for any subset of these Basic Services.

4.3.2 Withdrawal

This supplementary service will be withdrawn at the subscriber's request or for administrative reasons.

4.3.5 Activation

The COLR supplementary service shall be activated on provision.

4.3.6 Deactivation

The COLR supplementary service shall be deactivated on withdrawal.

4.3.7 Invocation

The network shall automatically invoke the COLR supplementary service for each incoming call at call setup phase.

4.3.8 Normal operation with successful outcome

If the calling party subscribes to the COLP supplementary service and the COLR supplementary service has been invoked, then the calling party shall receive an indication that the connected line identity is not available due to restriction.

When the COLR supplementary service is invoked, the destination network shall provide the originating network with a notification that the line identity of the connected party is not allowed to be presented to the calling party.

4.3.11 Interrogation

Status check

The mobile subscriber can request the status of the supplementary service and be informed if the service is provided to her.

4.4 Exceptional procedures or unsuccessful outcome

If the calling party has a relevant override category (see section 3.3.1) the restriction service will be overridden and the connected line identity will be presented to the calling party.

4.5 Alternate procedures

A VPLMN which supports the COLR service shall ensure that the line identity of a subscriber whose HPLMN does not support the COLR service shall not be displayed to the calling party unless the calling party has COLR override capability.

4.6 Interactions with other supplementary services

4.6.81.3 Connected line identification presentation

See section 3.6.81.4.

4.6.82.1 Call forwarding unconditional

If a forwarded-to user subscribes to the COLR supplementary service, then the forwarded-to user's line identity shall not be provided with the notification that the call has been forwarded.

A calling user that subscribes to the COLP supplementary service and who has override capability shall not be able to receive the forwarded-to user's line identity as part of the diverting notification information, but can invoke the COLP supplementary service with override in order to receive the connected line identity when the call is answered.

4.6.82.2 Call forwarding on mobile subscriber busy

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional.

4.6.82.3 Call forwarding on no reply

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional.

4.6.82.4 Call forwarding on mobile subscriber not reachable

Same as the interaction with call forwarding unconditional.

4.7 Interworking consideration

On calls from or via non-ISDNs, it cannot be assured that a connected line restriction indication can be carried to the originating network. As a national option the destination network can restrict any information identifying the connected party from being returned to the originating network when the COLR supplementary service is applicable. If an originating network receives a connected line identity without any indication of presentation allowed or restricted, the originating network shall act according to its rules and regulations.

For internetwork calls, when the COLR supplementary service is invoked, the destination network shall provide the originating network with a notification that the line identity of the connected party is not allowed to be presented to the calling party.

NOTE: When the COLR supplementary service is invoked, some network providers may not send the identity of the connected customer to other network providers.

History

Document history					
September 1994	First Edition				
November 1995	Converted into Adobe Acrobat Portable Document Format (PDF)				